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To:  Jim Scholl, City Manager 
 
Through: Donald Leland Craig, AICP, Interim Planning Director 
 
From:  Brendon Cunningham and Nicole Malo 
  
Date:               April 18, 2011 
 
Reference:  Revised HOB Proposed Site Plan Preliminary Analysis 
 
 
On Monday, April 14, 2011 the Planning Department received and logged in the modified and updated site 
plans and survey for the proposed redevelopment of Horace O’ Bryant Middle School located at 1105 Leon 
Street.  
 
The School Board of Monroe County property consists of a number of parcels as indicated in the Lot Size 
Calculations Table below. The parcels are grouped and identified in a map below as ‘Areas,’ they include 
the parking lot and drop off area along Pearl Street (Areas 3 and 4), the right-of-way of Leon and Eliza 
Streets as currently utilized (Area 5), a small parcel in the northeastern corner of the site where a parking lot 
and concession stand currently exist (Area 2) and the main portion of the property where development is 
proposed (Area 1). 
 
Typically when a development of this magnitude is proposed the Planning Department would require a 
development plan approval that would include a site plan reflecting data calculations for all five (5) areas 
combined.  A unity of title of the parcels would also be required. However, for the purpose of this analysis, 
staff has also included site data calculations limited to Area 1. This is because the site plans provided to the 
department only reflect portions of Area 1.  In fact, the site plans and utility plans (storm-water retention 
and drainage patterns) do not include the existing track and field area (located at the eastern side in Area 1) 
or Areas 2 through 5.  Staff is of the understanding that Areas 3, 4 and 5 will remain unchanged. Although 
these Areas are located within the Historic District boundaries HARC approvals may not be required given 
that no changes are proposed to the area. Staff has been verbally informed that the track and field area is 
intended to be used as open space, and for the purposes of this report will be calculated as such, however we 
have no plans that reflect this assumption and no information regarding the proposed use of Area 2.  
 
Staff is aware that on December 14, 2010, portions of the previously proposed plans were superseded and 
plans updated. Although staff has requested and received an updated site plan, the site plan (C-3) provided 
in the package proposal is dated October 1, 2010, which does not reflect the as-built condition of the site or 
the amended plans. The Utility Plan in the package provided is up to date. Staff requires the most updated 
site plans be provided with accurate dimensions and a site data table. To further complicate the preliminary 
analysis, staff has found conflicting dimensions between the proposed site plans and the site survey 



(Hilldebrant, March 18, 2010) that may negatively effect staff’s ability to accurately calculate the size of the 
site, impacting calculations for impervious surface and building coverage, and thus Floor Area Ratio 
(F.A.R). Having spoken with the engineering firm, we are aware that the revised storm-water drainage plan 
for the first phase of the project has been resubmitted to the SFWMD for approval, which to our knowledge 
has not been offered. Planning Staff has coordinated with the City’s Engineering department and discovered 
that the Utility Plan (as provided below) was not submitted for review and therefore may or may not meet 
stormwater requirements. 
 

Area Map  

 
 

Lot Size Calculations Table 
 Site Size 
Area 1 (RE# 44110) 395, 409 s.f
Area 2 (RE# 44190) 23, 175 s.f
Area 3 (RE# 34930, 34920, 34910) 17, 100 s.f
Area 4 (RE# 34390.0001, 34390.0002, 34390.0003, 34390.0004) 14, 760 s.f
Area 5 : ROW Utilized (Leon and Eliza Streets) 15,300 s.f

Total Site Size: 465,744 s.f
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MCPAFL Aerial 

 
 

Proposed Site Data Calculations Available   
Proposed Buildings Building Coverage Storeys F.A.R Height 3 

Phase 1: Bldg 2 24, 246 s.f Three (3) 72, 738 s.f 56’ 3” 
Bldg 3 10, 212 s.f One (1) 10, 212 s.f 25’ 8” 
Bldg 4 14, 928 s.f One (1) 14, 928 s.f 38’ 5” 

Phase 2: Bldg 1 18, 050 s,f Two (2) 36, 100 s.f No Elevations 
Bldg 5 11,205 s.f One (1) 11, 205 s.f 29’ 5” 
Bldg 6 25,783 s.f Two (2) 51, 566 s.f 40’ 9.5” 
Bldg 7 23,660 s.f One (1) 23, 660 s.f 35’10.5” 
Bldg 8 19,328 s.f One (1) 19, 328 s.f 37’ 10.5” 

     
Total : 148, 212 s.f 

31% of site total 1 
37% of Area 1 2 

 239, 737 s.f 
a. .51 of site total 
b. .61 of Area1 

 

 
1.   This calculation assumes a master plan proposal with site data taken from Areas 1-5 

 2.   This calculation assumes that the site data is taken from Area 1 
3.  The height was taken from the plans submitted to the Department. A site visit Friday April 15, 2011 revealed that the 

measurement of height was measured from filled grade at the site. As much as 2.5-3 feet of fill has been added. The measured 
height of all buildings should be adjusted upward to accommodate for the fill.  

The impervious surface calculations below have been estimated based on the information provided by the 
Engineering firm to for stormwater management. However, the area used to make this calculation (as shown 
below on the utility plan) does not include the entire parcel of Area 1. The front portions of Area 1 have 
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been omitted, existing Building 1 omitted, and the existing track and field area omitted. Areas 2-5 were not 
counted either. Therefore, staff has recalculated the total impervious areas for Area 1 and the entire site.  
 

Impervious Surface Ratio Calculations 
 Area Impervious Ratio 

Total Site 465,744 s.f 72%, 336, 102 s.f 
Area 1 395, 409 s.f 68%, 268,667 s.f 

 
Utility Plan 

 
 
Previous approvals on the site that the department is currently aware of include: 

• Resolution 97-112 – An Agreement between City and School Board for specified shared use of forty 
feet of the right-of-way of Virginia Street extending onto HOB and Police/Fire Department sites 

• Resolution 99-248 – Document appears to be an amended agreement of the shared land area from 
Resolution 97-112. Difference in document is indiscernible at this time 

• Resolution 03–185 – An Interlocal Agreement between the City and the School Board of Monroe 
County for the use of city right-of-way on Leon and Eliza Street from Pearl to Virginia Street 

 
Based on the plans provided to the Planning Department April 14, 2011, staff finds the following items are 
missing from the proposed plans: 

• Site Plans: 
o Consistent and updated site plan and survey dimensions  
o Site data calculations 
o Site dimensions  
o Plans and surface type for existing track and fields 
o Plans and surface type for  RE# 44190 (Area 2)  
o Elevations for Building 1 
o Elevations reflecting height from crown of road 
 

• Survey: 
o Signed and sealed  
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o Consistent dimensional measurements 
• Landscape Plan 
• City Engineering approval of revised Utility Plan 
• Traffic Analysis 
• Parking Analysis 
• Documentation showing the crown of the road used to measure height  
 

Anticipated applications, variances and/or waivers required: 
• Major Development Plan 
• Side yard setback variance for renovations to existing Building 1 and Building 2 (Northwesterly side 

yard) 
• Impervious surface variance 
• Landscape requirements waiver (where applicable per code) 
• Building Height variance 
• Parking variance 
• Referendum for all habitable space above height regulation of 25’ 

 
Staff has been recently informed by School Board Officials that Phase 2, including Buildings 1, 5, 6, 7, and 
8 (see plan below) may be brought into compliance with the City Land Development Regulations. This will 
require a significant redesign of the project. Staff is unable to determine if compliance can be achieved until 
the new designs are submitted for review. 
 

Building Plan 
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Attachments: 

• MCPAFL aerial map of demised area 
• Resolution 97-112 
• Resolution 99-248  
• Resolution 03–185  

 
Xc:  

Mark Finigan, Assistant City Manager 
David Fernandez, Assistant City Manager 
Shawn Smith, City Attorney 
Larry Erskine, Chief Assistant City Attorney 
Doug Bradshaw, Engineering, Senior Project Manager 
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HOB

PALMIS

Monroe County Property Appraiser

500 Whitehead Street

Key West, FL

DISCLAIMER: The Monroe County Property Appraiser's

office maintains data on property within the County solely

for the purpose of fulfilling its responsibility to secure a just

valuation for ad valorem tax purposes of all property within

the County. The Monroe County Property Appraiser's office

cannot guarantee its accuracy for any other purpose.

Likewise, data provided regarding one tax year may not be

applicable in prior or subsequent years. By requesting such

data, you hereby understand and agree that the data is

intended for ad valorem tax purposes only and should not be

relied on for any other purpose.
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HOB Aerial
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